AOPEN Inc.

Regulations for the Conduct of Shareholders' Meeting

- 1. This Regulations shall govern the conduct of Shareholders' Meetings of the Company.
- 2. The notification of the shareholders' meeting shall specify the time and the location of attendance registration. The time during which shareholder attendance registrations will be accepted shall be at least 30 minutes prior to the time the meeting commences. The place at which attendance registrations are accepted shall be clearly marked and a sufficient number of suitable personnel assigned to handle the registrations.

Each shareholder or his/her/its proxy attending the Shareholders' Meeting shall sign the attendance card for their attendance. The number of shares in attendance of the Shareholders' Meeting shall be calculated based upon the number of shares signed in according to the attendance cards so submitted, and the shares checked in on the virtual meeting platform, plus the shares exercising voting right by the ways of written or electronic transmission.

Shareholders or his/her/its proxy shall attend the Shareholders' Meeting with the attendance ID. Solicitors attend the Shareholders' Meeting by solicitations shall provide the whose personal ID for verification the identity.

- 3. The attendance and votes at the Shareholders' Meeting shall be based upon the number of shares in attendance.
- 4. The Shareholders' Meeting shall be held at the location of the Company, or a place which is convenient for the shareholders to attend and proper for holding such meeting. The Shareholders' Meeting shall be held no earlier than 9 a.m. and no later than 3 p.m. on the designated meeting date.
- 5. The Shareholders' Meeting shall be called by the Board of Directors. The chairman of the Board of Directors shall preside over the meeting. If the chairman of the Board of Directors takes a leave or is not available for the meeting then the vice-chairman of the Board of Directors shall act on his/her behalf to preside over the meeting. If neither the chairman nor the vice-chairman of the Board of Directors is available for the meeting, or no vice-chairman is elected, the chairman shall designate a director of the Board of Directors to act on his/her behalf to preside over the meeting. The Board of Directors shall elect a director to act on the chairman's behalf if the chairman does not appoint a designee, and such elected director shall have been the director of the Company for more than 6 months and familiars with the financial and business status of the Company. The conditions are the same when the chairman of the Board of Directors is assigned by the corporate director. In the event that a Shareholders' Meeting is called by a person other

- than the Board of Directors who is entitled by law to call a Shareholders' Meeting, that person shall preside over the meeting.
- 6. The Company may designate attorneys, certified-public-accountants, or relevant personnel to attend the Shareholders' Meeting. Staff assists on the holding of the Shareholders' Meeting shall wear an identification or a badge.
- 7. The Company, beginning from the time it accepts shareholder attendance registrations, shall make an uninterrupted audio and video recording of the registration procedure, the proceedings of the shareholders meeting, and the voting and vote counting procedures. The recorded materials of the preceding paragraph shall be retained for at least one year. If, however, a shareholder files a lawsuit pursuant to Article 189 of the Company Law, the recording shall be retained until the conclusion of the litigation.
- 8. The person who presides over the Shareholders' Meeting shall call the meeting in session at the designated time of the meeting. However, such person may announce a postponement of the meeting if at the designated time shares in attendance fail to exceed half of the total issued and outstanding shares of the Company. Such a postponement of meeting shall not be made more than two times, with postponement(s) limiting to one hour in aggregate. If, after second such postponement, shares in attendance are less than a quorum but more than one-thirds of the total issued and outstanding shares, the shareholders may proceed with such meeting pursuant to Article 175 of the Company Law to adopt provisional resolutions.

Before the meeting is adjourned, if shares in attendance have reached a required quorum, the person presiding over the meeting may, pursuant to Article 174 of the Company Law, submit those provisional resolutions so adopted for a final resolution at the meeting.

- 9. If Shareholders' Meeting is called by the Board of Directors, the Board of Directors shall set the agenda of the meeting. The meeting shall proceed in accordance with the agenda so set by the Board of Directors unless otherwise changed by a resolution adopted at the meeting. During the meeting, the person presiding over the meeting may allocate an appropriate amount of time for recess. Unless otherwise adopted by a resolution, the person presiding over the meeting may not adjourn the meeting prior to the end of the agenda of the meeting. If the person presiding over the meeting declares the adjournment of the meeting in a manner in violation of the applicable rules governing the proceedings of meetings, a new chairman of the meeting may be elected by a resolution adopted by a majority of the voting rights represented by the shareholders attending said meeting to continue the proceeding of the meeting.
- 10. A shareholder in attendance who wishes to make an oral statement at the Shareholders' Meeting shall first submit an oral statement form, stating the gist of his/her statement, his/her name and shareholder's account number. The person presiding over the meeting shall determine the order

to make such oral statements. Shareholder in attendance who submits an oral statement form but fail to make an oral statement shall be deemed to have not made any statement. In the event of any conflict between the contents of the oral statement form and the actual oral statement, the actual oral statement shall prevail. No shareholders shall interfere with the shareholder who is making oral statement in any way unless the chairman of the meeting or the speaking shareholder gives his/her consent. The person presiding over the meeting shall stop any such interference.

- 11. Unless otherwise approved by the person presiding over the meeting, each shareholder may make oral statements only twice for a same proposal or addressing matter under deliberation; and the length each oral statement shall not exceed 5 minutes. Otherwise, the person presiding over the meeting may stop the shareholder from making further statements.
- 12. A legal entity acting as a proxy for a shareholder to attend the meeting may appoint only one representative to attend the meeting. If more than one representatives are appointed by such legal entity to attend the meeting, only one person elected among them may make oral statements on the same proposal.
- 13. The person presiding over the meeting may reply to the oral statements, or may designate appropriate person to reply to the oral statements made by shareholders in attendance.
- 14. The person presiding over the meeting may declare the suspension of discussing of a proposal as he/she may deem appropriate and may submit the proposal for adopting a resolution.
- 15. The person presiding over the meeting shall appoint persons among the shareholders in attendance to supervise the voting process. Vote counting for shareholders meeting proposals or elections shall be conducted in public at the place of the shareholders meeting. Immediately after vote counting has been completed, the results of the voting, including the statistical tallies of the numbers of votes, shall be announced on-site at the meeting, and a record made of the vote. The election of directors or independent directors at a shareholders meeting, the voting results shall be announced on-site immediately, including the names of those elected as directors and the numbers of votes with which they were elected.
- 16. Unless otherwise provided for in the Company Law or the Company's Articles of Incorporation, a proposal may be adopted as a resolution by a majority of the shares in attendance voting in favor thereof.
- 17. The person presiding over the meeting shall determine the order of voting on amendment proposals or substituted proposals accompanying with their original proposals. As soon as one of those proposals is adopted as a resolution, other proposals in conflict regarding the same matter shall be deemed denied and shall require no further voting. Shareholders exercise voting right by the ways of written or electronic transmission shall be deemed waive the voting rights on the proposals and the extempore motion in such Shareholders' Meeting.

- 18. The person presiding over the meeting may direct monitors (or security guards) to maintain order at the meeting. Monitors (or security guards) shall wear a badge marked "SECURITY" or "MONITOR" when performing their duties at the meetings.
- 19. In the event of force majeure during the meeting, the person presiding over the meeting may suspend a meeting and may announce at a later time when the meeting shall be resumed as he/she deems appropriate; or the shareholders shall make a resolution at the meeting to resume the meeting within 5 days without the need to make any further written notices or published announcements to shareholders.
- 20. The applicable provisions of the Company Act and the Company's Articles of Incorporation shall govern any matter not provided herein.
- 21. This Regulations and any amendments thereto, shall become effective upon approval by the shareholders.
- 22. This Regulations was approved on May 25, 1998.

First Amendment was approved on May 11, 1999.

Second Amendment was approved on June 12, 2003.

Third Amendment was approved on June 19, 2012.

Fourth Amendment was approved on June 11, 2013.